



***(List of Prohibited Items according to
Post Office Guide)***

PROHIBITED ARTICLES

110. **General prohibitions.** ----- The transmission by the inland post of the undermentioned articles is prohibited: -----

- (1) Anything which is sent in contravention of any enactment or Government orders for the time being in force.
- (2) An indecent or obscene printing, painting, photograph, lithograph, engraving, book or card or any other indecent or obscene articles.
- (3) Any letter, postcard, newspaper, packet or parcel having on it any words, marks or design of an indecent, obscene, seditious, scurrilous threatening, or grossly offensive nature.
- (4) Any explosive, inflammable, dangerous, filthy, noxious or deleterious substance (but see CLAUSES 99 and 100).

"Clause-99. **Celluloid.** Films, celluloid and articles made wholly or partly of celluloid must be packed in a double receptacle. Such articles should first be enclosed in the case of films, in a hermetically sealed box of tin and in the case of celluloid or articles made wholly or partly of celluloid in a box of tin, cardboard or wood, the vacant space being completely filled to prevent any movement of the contents. The box should then wrap completely all round with padding material in sufficient quantity and placed inside a wooden box, made of the planks not less than 3/8 of an inch in thickness, the sides of which should be dovetailed, the base and the lid being solidly screwed to the sides of which should be dovetailed, any intervening space being completely filled with additional packing material so as to hold the inner receptacle tightly in position and to prevent any rattle. A white label bearing in heavy black characters the indication "CELLULOID-KEEP AWAY FROM FIRE AND LIGHT" must be affixed to the address side of the parcel."

"Clause-100. **Osmic Acid.** Osmic acid may be transmitted by the Inland Post subject to the following conditions: -

- (a) The acid must be securely packed in a hermetically sealed stout glass capsule which should be embedded in the center of a tin case filled with sand in such a manner as to leave a layer of sand of not less than 45 millimeters between any part of the glass capsule and the inside of the tin case.
 - (b) The outside of the tin case must be labelled in red letters five millimeters high "OSMIC ACID-DANGEROUS TO HANDLE".
 - (c) The tin case must be soldered down and placed in an outer box of wood of reasonable strength with a layer of at least 25 millimeters of raw cotton wool between the inner tin case and the outer wooden box.
 - (d) The outside of the wooden box should also be labelled in red letters "OSMIC ACID".
 - (e) The quantity of the acid enclosed in a capsule must not exceed two grammes and not more than one capsule should be included in a parcel."
- (5) Any sharp instrument not properly protected.
 - (6) Living animals, except bees, leeches and silkworms; parasites and destroyers of noxious insects intended for the control of those insects and exchanged between officially recognized institutions.
 - (7) Lottery tickets or circulars relating to lotteries.

- (8) Newspapers in respect of which the rules laid down in the Press and Registration of Books Act, 1867, as subsequently amended have not been complied with.
- (9) All classes of articles of the letter mail of which the whole or a part of the address side has been marked off into several divisions intended to receive successive addresses.
- (10) Any article which has there-on or on the cover thereof any matter which constitutes an attack on the territorial integrity or sovereignty of Pakistan.
- (11) Articles which, by the nature of their packing, may expose officials Hemp and all manufactured drugs.
- (12) All dangerous drugs, which term includes Opium, Coca Leaf, Hemp and all manufactured drugs.
 - (a) Opium means. (i) the capsules of poppy (*Papaver Somniferous L*) (ii) the spontaneously coagulated juice of such capsules which has not been submitted to any manipulations other than those necessary for packing and transport; and (iii) any mixture with or without neutral materials, of any of the above forms of opium, but does not include any preparation containing not more than 0.2 per cent of morphine.
 - (b) "Opium derivatives" means ----
 - (i) medicinal opium, that is, opium which has undergone the process necessary to adapt it for medicinal use in accordance with the requirements of the Pakistan Pharmacopoeia, whether in powder form or granulated or otherwise or mixed with neutral materials.
 - (ii) prepared opium, that is, any product of opium obtained by any series of operations designed to transform opium into an extract suitable for smoking, and the dross or other residue remaining after opium is smoked.
 - (iii) morphine, that is, the principal alkaloid of opium having the chemical formula $C_{17}H_{19}NO_3$, and its salts;
 - (iv) diacetylmorphine, that is, the alkaloid, also known as diamorphine or heroin, having the chemical formula $C_{21}H_{23}NO_5$, and its salts; and
 - (v) all preparations, official and non – official, containing more than 0.2 per Cent of morphine, or containing any diacetylmorphine.
 - (c) "Coca leaf" means --- (i) the leaf and young twigs of any coca plant that is of the *Erythroxylon coca* (Lamk) and the *Erythroxylon novogranatense* (Hiern) and their varieties, and of any other species of this genus which the Central Government may by notification in the Gazette of Pakistan, declare to be coca plants and (ii) any mixture thereof, with or without natural materials; but does not include any preparations containing not more than 0.1 per cent of cocaine.
 - (d) "Coca derivatives" means ----
 - (i) Crude Cocaine, that is, any extract of coca leaf which can be used, directly or indirectly, for the manufacture of cocaine;

- (ii) Ecgonine, that is, laevo – ecgonine having the chemical formula $C_9, H_{15}, NO_3, H_1, O_2$ and all the derivatives of laevo – ecgonine from which it can be recovered;
- (iii) Cocaine, that is, methylbenzoyl – laevo – icognine having the chemical formula C_{17}, H_{21}, NO_4 and its salt;
- (iv) All preparations, official and non-official, containing more than 0.1 per cent of cocaine.
- (e) “Hemp” means (i) the leaves, small stalks and flowering or fruiting tops of the Indian hemp plant (*Cannabis sativa* L) including all forms known as bhang, siddhi or ganja; (ii) charas, that is, the resin obtained from the Indian hemp plant, which has not been submitted to any manipulation other than those necessary for packing and transport and (iii) any mixture with or without neutral materials, of any of the above forms of hemp or any drink prepared therefrom.
- (f) “Medicinal hemp” means any extract or tincture of hemp.
- (g) “Manufactured Drugs” includes the following narcotic substances: ----
 - (i) Eucodal and dicodide and their respective salts and any preparation, admixture and extracts containing either of them.
 - (ii) Diluadide, and benzoyl – morphine and other esters of morphine, and salts and preparations of diludide, benzoyl – morphine and other esters or morphine.
 - (iii) Acedieone and its salts and preparations.
 - (iv) All the ethers and salts of ecgonine.
 - (v) The baine and its salts.
 - (vi) Dihydrohydroxycodeinone, dihydrocodeinone, dihydromorphinone, acetyl-dihydrocodeinone or acetyldemethylo, dihydrothebaine, dihydromorphine, their ether and the salts of any of these substances and of their ethers, morphine – N – oxide (commonly known as genomorphine) and morphine – N – oxide derivates, and any other pentavalent nitrogen morphine derivatives.
 - (vii) Methylmorphine commonly known as codeine, and ethyl morphine commonly known as dionin, and their respective salts, and preparations containing any of these substances and also liquid compounds consisting of solution of any one of these in one or more inert fluids except such as are adapted to normal therapeutic use, i.e. except dry preparation (pills, tablets, etc) containing not more than 0.1 gramme of any of these associated with other medicinal substances and liquids consisting of a solution of any one of these substances not exceeding 10 per cent.
 - (viii) Other ethers of morphine (including benzyl morphine) and their respective salts.
 - (ix) Preparations made from the extract or tincture of Indian hemp except those which are capable only of external use.
 - (x) Desomorphine (dihydrodesoxy – morphine).
 - (xi) Pethidine and its salts (Pethidine Hydrochloride).
 - (xii) Alphaprodine and its salts (Alphaprodine Hydrochloride).

- (xiii) Betaprodine and its salts.
- (xiv) Bemidone and its salts.
- (xv) Ketobemidone and its salts (Ketobemidone Hydrochloride).
- (xvi) Alphameprodine and its salts.
- (xvii) Betameprodine and its salts.
- (xviii) Methadone and its salts (Methadone Hydrochloride, Methadone Bitartrate).
- (xix) Methadol and its salts.
- (xx) Isomethadone and its salts (Isomethadone Hydrochloride).
- (xxi) Methadylacetate and its salts.
- (xxii) Phenadoxone and its salts (Phenadoxone Hydrochloride).
- (xxiii) Synthetic Narcotic drugs of the Morphine Type, i.e., 3-Hydroxy-N Methyl-Morphine and its salts.
- (xxiv) Any other narcotic substance declared to be a "manufactured drug" under sub-clause (ii) of clause (g) of section 2 of the "Dangerous Drugs Act, 1930.

These prohibitions do not apply to (i) transactions on account of the Government and (ii) the dispatch of recognized medicinal preparation specified in the list below.

Government consignments can be transmitted through the post on the following conditions: -

- (a) Only the parcel post may be used, and
- (b) The parcel shall be accompanied by a declaration stating the name of designations of the consignee and consignor, the contents of the parcels in detail, and the indent number and date covering the transaction,
- (c) The labels affixed to containers of all synthetic manufactured drugs shall be marked with a double red line.

Exception --- Opium and morphia and their preparations, coca leaves, and hemp and preparations thereof, cocaine and its allied drugs and preparations thereof, can be sent by post, under the following conditions by a chemist licensed to possess and sell them: ---

- (1) That they are sent by the parcel post and the parcels are insured.
- (2) That their transmission by posts is not prohibited by the Provincial Government in which the dispatching post office is situated, to the office of destination and that in every case transmission is covered by a permit issued by the proper authorities in the province in which the place of destination of the parcel is situated.
- (3) That each parcel containing any of the drugs mentioned or their preparations is accompanied by a declaration stating the names of the consignee and consignor, the contents of the parcel in detail, the permit number and date covering the transmission, the number of the license held by the consignee or a declaration that the consignee is exempt from the obligation to have in possession a license for the quantity concerned and any further particulars that may be required.
- (4) That parcel containing synthetic manufactured drugs shall be marked with a double red line.

Note. ---- This prohibition does not apply to such medical preparations as are sent to the Director, General Drug Laboratory, for test and registration under the Drugs Act, 1940.

List of preparations of opium, morphia and cocaine which are exempted from the operation of his clause.

OPIUM

1. Brompton Consumption and Cough Specific.
2. Mistura Pepsinae Composita C Bismutho.
3. Linctus Opiatus.
4. Latio Plumbi C. Opio.
5. Mistura Scillae Co.
6. Syrupus Comphorate Co.
7. Tincture Anti-periodica.
8. Pulv. Ipecac Co., or Dovers' powder
9. Ung. Gallae. Ppio.
10. Enteronol or Cholerol.
11. A specific containing opium for cholera, diarrhea and dysentery prepared by Bell Drug and Chemical Company, London, and Labelled as such.
12. Cotarnina.
13. Chamberlain's Colic and Diarrhea Remedy.
14. Codeina and its preparations and salts.

MORPHIA

1. Anodyne pine expectorant.
2. Apocodinae hydrochloridum.
3. Syrupus Apomorphinae.
4. Linctus Apomorphinae c. Codeine.
5. Haustus Apomorphinae Co.
6. Mistura Apomorphinae et Terebeni.
7. Powell's Balsam of Aniseed.
8. Camphorodyne
9. Chlorodyne
10. Apomorphinae Hydrochloridum.
11. Mono-ethyl-Morphinae Hydrochloridum- Dionin.
12. Syrup Cocillana compound.

❖ Provided that they do not contain more than 2 grains of morphine per fluid ounce.

COCAINE

1. Throat mentholated Tablets Rx "A".
2. Parke Davis and Co.'s Mentholated
3. Parke Davis and Co.'s Elixo Kola Compound.
4. Parke Davis and Co.'s kola Compound.
5. Parke Davis and Co.'s Coca Cordial.
6. Burgoyne burbidge's Ixidama.
7. Burroughs wellcome and Co.'s Tabliid Voice.
8. Allen and Hambury's Pastilles Menthol Cocaine and Red Gum Pasties.

9. Allen and Hambury's Rhatnay and Cocaine.
10. Allen and Hambury's Red Gum and Cocaine.
11. Sedna Tonic Wine.
12. Parke Davis and Co.'s Kola Cordial.
13. Wright and Co.'s Damiana Elixir.
14. Allen and Hambury's Menthol Eucalyptus and cocaine Pastilles.
15. Fluid Extract Saw Palmetto comp. manufactured by Messrs. Parke Davis & Co., London.
16. "Ferrasons" manufactured by Dr. Zambelatti of Millano.

❖ Provided that they do not contain more than one-tenth per cent of cocaine.



**List of Banned and Restricted Items according to Import
Policy Order-Ministry of Commerce Government of Pakistan}**

**BANNED ITEMS
(NEGATIVE LIST)**

Import of Commodities specified in the following Table is not permissible, namely:

TABLE

Sr. No. (1)	PCT Codes (2)	Commodity Description (3)
1.	4901.9910, 8523.2100, 8523.2910, 8523.2920, 8523.2930, 8523.2940, 8523.2990, 8523.4910, 8523.4920, 8523.4930, 8523.4110, 8523.4120, 8523.4190, 8523.5110, 8523.5120, 8523.5190, 8523.5210, 8523.5220, 8523.5910, 8523.5990, 8523.8010, 8523.8020, 8523.8030, 8523.8040, 8523.8090 and respective headings.	Translation of the Holy Quran without Arabic text.
2.	4910.0000, 4911.1000, 4911.9100, 4911.9900, 8523.2100, 8523.2910, 8523.2920, 8523.2930, 8523.2940, 8523.2990, 8523.4910, 8523.4920, 8523.4930, 8523.4110, 8523.4120, 8523.4190, 8523.5110, 8523.5120, 8523.5190, 8523.5210, 8523.5220, 8523.5910, 8523.5990, 8523.8010, 8523.8020, 8523.8030, 8523.8040, 8523.8090 and other respective headings.	Goods (including their containers) bearing any obscene pictures, writings, inscriptions or visible representations.
3.	4707.1010, 4707.1090, 4707.2010, 4707.2090, 4707.3010, 4707.3090, 4707.9010, 4707.9090, 4901.1000, 4901.9100, 4901.9910, 4901.9990, 4902.1000, 4902.9000, 4910.0000, 4911.1000, 4911.9100, 4911.9900, 8523.2100, 8523.2910, 8523.2920, 8523.2930, 8523.2940, 8523.2990, 8523.4910, 8523.4910, 8523.4930, 8523.4110, 8523.4120, 8523.4190, 8523.5110, 8523.5120, 8523.5190, 8523.5210, 8523.5220, 8523.5910, 8523.5990, 8523.8010, 8523.8020, 8523.8030, 8523.8040, 8523.8090 and other respective headings.	Anti-Islamic, obscene or subversive literature.
4.	Respective headings.	Any goods containing ingredients or parts which may be repugnant to the injunctions of Islam as laid down in the Holy Quran and Sunnah of the Holy Prophet (Peace be upon him), including pigs, hogs, boars and swine, and their products and by-products.
5.	Respective headings	Any edible product not fit for human consumption.
6.	Respective headings.	Goods (including their containers) bearing any words or inscription of a religious connotation, the use or disposal of which may injure the religious feelings of any sect, class or group of people in Pakistan.
7.	Respective headings.	Factory rejects and goods of job lot/stock lot or sub- standard quality except those mentioned below: - Waste, seconds and cutting of- iron and steel sheets and plates in cut length or coils; tin sheets and plates of one side not less than

		<p>45.7 cm (18 inch); stainless steel sheets, coils, plates and circles of AISI-200, AISI-300 and or AISI-400 series only; Cotton waste (H.S. No. 5202.0000); and Granules made by the recycling of plastics waste.</p> <p>2. Re-rollable scrap (7204.1010, 7204.4910) - The scrap having width not exceeding 1000 mm with thickness 6 mm and above and a length not exceeding 2.5 meters, consisting of mill rejects and crop ends of ingots, billets, slabs, blooms and including cuttings of sheets and plates, pipes and bars whether in pieces or in rolled strips, cuttings of ships plates, used and pitted rails and girders, whereas in case of girders and pipes length shall be 1.5 meter.</p>
8.	0713.9090, 1209.2900, 1214.9000	Vetches (whole grain, split or any other form).
9.	1211.3000, 1211.4000, 1211.9000	Cocoa leaves, poppy straw and cannabis herbs.
10.	1301.9010	Cannabis resins and balsams.
11.	1302.1100	Opium.
12.	1302.1900	Concentrate of poppy straw; extracts and tinctures of cannabis.
13.	Respective headings.	used vegetable ghee and cooking oil
14.	2203.0000, 2204.1000, 2204.2100, 2204.2900, 2204.3000, 2205.1000, 2205.9000, 2206.0000, 2208.2000, 2208.3000, 2208.4000, 2208.5000, 2208.6000, 2208.7000, 2208.9000	Alcoholic beverages and spirits (excluding ethyl alcohol of industrial grade), including brewing and distilling dregs and waste, wine lees and argol.
15.	2620.1100, 2620.1900, 2620.2100, 2620.2900, 2620.3000, 2620.6000, 2620.9100, 2620.9900, 2621.1000, 2621.9000, 2710.9900, 2713.9090, 3825.1000, 3825.2000, 3825.3000, 3825.4100, 3825.4900, 3825.5000, 3825.6100, 3825.6900, 3825.9000, 3915.1000, 7902.0000, 8110.2000, 8112.1300, 8548.1000 and other respective headings.	Hazardous wastes as defined and classified in the Basel Convention.
16.	Respective headings	Used lubricating, hydraulic, transformer oils and similar oils or waste oils.
17.	2921.5900	Other (benzidine and its derivatives).
18.	2921.5900, 2922.2900	Paraphenylene-tolene carbamide and 5-Nitro-2-propoxy-aniline in both tablet and powder or crystalline forms.

19.	29.09.090	Allyl-isothio-cyanate.
20.	29.9.3000	Caffeine citrate.
21.	30.3.3100, 9018.3110, 9018.3120	Insulin preparations and syringes in 40 I.U. strength.
22.	32.04.1100, 3204.1200, 3204.1300, 3204.1400, 3204.1510, 3204.1590, 3204.1600, 3204.1700, 3204.1910, 3204.1990, 3204.2000, 3204.9000, 3212.9090	Dyes containing benzidine.
23.	36.04.9000	Other (pyrotechnic articles)
24.	37.04.0000, 3706.1000, 3706.9000	Cinematograph film wholly or partly exposed or developed in any Pakistani or Indian Language, with or without a sound track and depicting Pakistani or Indian way of living either silent or dubbed, or in which leading roles have been played by Pakistani or Indian Actors or actresses.
25.	Respective Headings	Hospital waste of all kind, used sewerage pipes and used chemical containers.
26.	4012.1100, 4012.1200, 4012.1300, 4012.1900	Rethreaded tyres.
27.	4012.2000	Used pneumatic tyres.
28.	4301.1000, 4301.6000, 4301.8000, 4301.9000, 4302.1100, 4302.1910, 4302.1990, 4303.1000, 4303.9000	Furskins and manufactures thereof, other than raw furskins and tanned or dressed furskins of sheep, lambs, rabbits, goats, kids thereof, calf and other animal fur not internationally prohibited.
29.	6812.8000	Clothing (of asbestos).
30.	8414.3090, 8415.1010, 8415.1020, 8415.1030, 8415.1090, 8418.1000, 8418.2100, 8418.2900, 8418.3000, 8418.4000, 8418.5000, 8418.6100, 8418.6910, 8418.6920, 8418.6990	CFC gas-based refrigerators, deep-freezers and other refrigerating cooling, chilling equipment, CFC based air conditioning equipment and CFC based compressors of these equipment.
31.	8438.4000	Brewery machinery/machinery for alcoholic beverages.
32.	8512.3010, 8512.3020, 8512.3030, 8512.3090, 8512.9010, 8512.9020, 8512.9030, 8512.9090	Pressure horns and parts thereof.
33.	8517.1100	Digital Enhanced Cordless Telecommunication (DECT) 6.0 phone.
34.	8710.0010, 8710.0090	Tanks and other armoured fighting vehicles, motorized, whether or not fitted with weapons and parts of such vehicles, other than armoured security vans.

35.	9301.1000, 9301.2000, 9301.9010, 9301.9021, 9301.9022, 9301.9023, 9301.9029, 9301.9030, 9301.9041, 9301.9049, 9301.9090	Military weapons, machine-guns, sub-machine-guns, automatic rifles of all calibers and other military fire-arms and projectiles (other than revolvers and pistols).
36.	9302.0011, 9302.0012, 9302.0013, 9302.0019	Revolvers and pistols of prohibited bores and of calibers higher than 0.46 inches bore.
37.	9303.9000	Other (fire arms and similar devices which operate by firing of an explosive charge), excluding ring blaster tools / boulder ballistic guns / riveting tools.
38.	9304.0000	Other arms (excluding air guns, air pistols their parts and slugs falling under their respective PCT headings).
39.	9305.1010, 9305.1020, 9305.1030, 9305.1090, 9305.2010, 9305.2020, 9305.2030, 9305.2040, 9305.2090, 9305.9111, 9305.9112, 9305.9113, 9305.9119, 9305.9190, 9305.9900	Parts and accessories of articles of heading No. 93.01 to 93.04, excluding parts and accessories appearing against S.Nos. 66 & 67 of Part-I of Appendix-B.
40.	9306.2100, 9306.2900, 9306.3010, 9306.3090, 9306.9000	Ammunition and parts of ammunition, excluding ammunition for weapons of non-prohibited bores and cartridges for riveting or similar tools.
41.	9505.9000, 9508.9000	Gambling equipment.
42.	Respective headings	Stolen goods.
43.	2403.1100, 2403.9990	Sheesha (tobacco and non-tobacco) and related substances.
44.	2922.4210	Monosodium Glutamate also known as Ajinomoto Salt.

RESTRICTED ITEMS

Import of the following items, shall be allowed only on meeting the conditions stipulated in column (4) below:

PART-I

HEALTH AND SAFETY REQUIREMENT

Sr. No.	PCT Codes	COMMODITY DESCRIPTION	CONDITIONS
(1)	(2)	(3)	(4)
1.	0101.2100,0101.3000, 0101.9000 0102.3100, 0102.2110,0102.2120 0102.2130, 0102.2190,0102.3900 0102.2910, 0102.2920,0102.2930 0102.2990, 0102.9000,0104.1000 0104.2000, 0105.1100,0105.1200 0105.1300, 0105.1400,0105.1500 0105.9400, 0105.9900,0106.1100 0106.1200,0106.1900, 0106.2000 0106.3110, 0106.3190,0106.3200 0106.3900, 0106.9000,0511.1000 0511.9990	Live animals, animal semen and embryos	(i) Importable subject to quarantine requirement of Animal Quarantine Department of Ministry of National Food Security & Research, Government of Pakistan;and (ii) Import of wild life species including those mentioned in Appendix-II of theCITES shall be allowedonly after obtaining NOC from NationalCouncil for Conservation of Wild Life (NCCW).
2.	0301.1100,0301.1900,0301.9100 0301.9200,0301.9300,0301.9400 0301.9500,0301.9900,0302.1100 0302.1300,0302.1400,0302.1900 0302.2100,0302.2200,0302.2300 0302.2900,0302.3100,0302.3200 0302.3300,0302.3400,0302.3500 0302.3600,0302.3900,0302.4100 0302.4300,0302.5100,0302.5200 0302.5300,0302.4400,0302.8100 0302.7400,0302.4700,0302.8300 0302.4200,0302.8900,0302.9000 0303.1100,0303.1900,0303.1400 0303.1300,0303.2900,0303.3100 0303.3200,0303.3300,0303.3900 0303.4100,0303.4200,0303.4300 0303.4400,0303.4500,0303.4600 0303.4900,0303.5100,0303.6300 0303.5700,0303.8300,0303.5300 0303.6400,0303.6500,0303.5400 0303.8100,0303.2600,0303.8400 0303.6600,0303.8900,0303.9000 0304.4500,0304.4600,0304.4900 0304.8400,0304.8500,0304.8900 0304.9100,0304.9200,0304.9900 0305.1000,0305.2000,0305.3100 0305.3900,0305.4100,0305.4200 0305.4900,0305.5100,0305.5900 0305.6100,0305.6200,0305.6300 0305.6900,0306.1100,0306.1200 0306.1600,0306.1700,0306.1400 0306.1900,0306.2100,0306.2200 0306.2600,0306.2700,0306.2400 0306.2900,0307.1100,0307.1900 0307.2100,0307.2900,0307.3100 0307.3900,0307.4100,0307.4900 0307.4100,0307.5900,0307.6000 0307.9100,0307.9900	Fish and fishery products	Importable subject to quarantine requirements Of Animal Quarantine Department of Ministry of National Food Security and Research, Government of Pakistan.

3.	0601.1010, 0601.1090, 0601.2000 0602.1000, 0602.2000, 0602.3000 0602.4000, 0602.9010, 0602.9090 and respective headings	All species of plants, their parts and plant material, whether living or dead, stems, branches, tubers, bulbs, corms, stock, bud-wood, layers, slips, suckers, green scum on stagnant pool, leaves, fruits, rhizomes etc.	Importable, subject to compliance of Phytosanitary requirements and drawing of samples and testing quality by Department of Plant Protection and Federal Seed Certification Agency of Ministry of National Food Security and Research, Government of Pakistan.
4.	0601.1010, 0601.1090, 0601.2000 0602.1000, 0602.2000, 0602.3000 0602.4000, 0602.9010, 0602.9090 0701.1000, 1207.1000, 1207.2100 1207.2900, 1207.3000, 1207.4000 1207.5000, 1207.6000, 1207.7000 1207.9100, 1207.9900, 1209.3000 1209.9110, 1209.9120, 1209.9190 1209.9900 and respective headings.	Sugarcane seeds, banana and suckers, vegetable seeds, seed potatoes, oil seeds, flower seeds and other field crop seeds including Tubers, Rhizomes, Roots, Cuttings, etc.	(i) Importable subject to drawing of samples and testing of quality by Federal Seed Certification Agency and Department of Plant Protection of Ministry of National Food Security & Research, Government of Pakistan. (ii) Import of rice seeds shall be subject to strict quarantine measures prescribed under the Seed Act 1976 (XXIX of 1976), and any other related law. Import of opium poppy seeds shall be allowed from those countries only where it is legally produced.
5.	0802.8000	Betel nuts (Areca).	Importable subject to production of Phytosanitary certificate issued by the competent authorities of the country of origin/export confirming that the exported goods are free from infestation; and are fit for human consumption.
6.	1207.2100	Cotton Seed.	Importable with prior approval of the Ministry of National Food Security & Research, Government of Pakistan.
7.	1511.1000	Crude palm oil	(i) Importable only by the manufacturers having valid license and registration from Pakistan Standard Quality Control Authority (PSQCA) for further processing and refining. Manufacturers who import oil shall not be allowed to sell palm oil in crude form to non-manufacturers. (ii) Commercial importers importing bulk crude palm oil for storage shall also be allowed to import subject to safeguard mechanism to be notified by the Federal Board of Revenue.
8.	1511.9010	Palm Stearin	It will have distinct fat soluble Colour to conform to the Lovibond color range of 10 red minimum on tintometers 5/14 Cell to ensure that palm stearin is not misused for edible oil/ghee making.

9.	2402.1000, 2402.2000, 2402.9000	Cigars, cheroots, cigarillos and cigarettes, of tobacco or of tobacco substitutes	Packets should carry the health warning as prescribed by Ministry of National Health Services Regulations and Coordination from time to time.
10.	Respective Headings	All edible products	Imports shall be subject to following conditions: (i) It must be fit for human consumption; (ii) They shall be free of any 'haram' element or ingredients; (iii) Edible products shall have at least 66% (2/3 rd) shelf life, remaining from the date of manufacturing; (iii a) The ingredients and details of the product (e.g. nutritional facts, usage instructions etc.) of food products are printed in Urdu and English languages on the consumer packaging; (iii b) The logo of the Halal certification body is printed on the consumer packaging; (iii c) The labeling under clauses (iii a) & (iii b) above shall not be in the form of a sticker, overprinting, stamp or scratched labeling; (iii d) The shipment is accompanied by a 'Halal certificate' issued by a Halal Certification Body, accredited with an Accrediting Body (AB) which is a member of International Halal Accreditation Forum (IHAF) or Standard Metrology Institute for Islamic Countries (SMIC); (iv) Clause (iii-d) shall take effect from the 1 st day of May, 2020. (v) That, in case of meat, it was obtained from 'halal animals and slaughtered in accordance with the Islamic injunctions; (vi) Import of edible oil in bulk quantity shall be on landed weight and quality basis.
11.	2844.1000, 2844.2000, 2844.3000, 2844.4000, 2844.5000, 8543.1000, 8543.8900, 9022.1200, 9022.1300, 9022.1400, 9022.2100, 9022.2900, 9022.9000 and respective headings	Radioactive materials and Radiation apparatus	Import of Radioactive materials and apparatus as specified in Annex B-1, will be subject to the prior approval of Pakistan Nuclear Regulatory Authority.
12.	2524.1000, 2524.9000	Asbestos.	Import of asbestos of chrysotile type of following specification only shall be allowed: - Specification: - Colour-white to Grey; and Density 2.4 g/cm ³ to 2.6 g/cm ³ . Conditions: - Certificate from the exporter confirming that type of asbestos being exported is chrysotile asbestos with the above

			specifications. The importers of asbestos will clearly mention the type of the asbestos being imported in the import documents.
13.	2804.8000,2530.9090,2812.1010,2812.1020,2812.1030,2812.1040,2812.1050,2812.1090,2812.9000,2813.9000,2848.0000,2850.0000	Arsenic and Arsenic compound.	Importable by industrial consumers who have valid licenses issued by the concerned Environment Protection Agency/ Department under Pakistan Environmental Protection Act (PEPA) 1997.
14.	2849.1000	Calcium carbide, whether or not chemically defined.	Importable with prior approval of the Department of Explosives.
15.	Respective Headings	Ozone Depleting Substances	Import of ozone depleting substances specified at Appendix-F shall be subject to the policy/quota allocations to be laid down by the Ministry of Climate Change from time to time.
16.	2915.2400	Acetic anhydride	Importable by concerned industrial consumers after obtaining NOC from the Ministry of Narcotics Control. However, the quantity to be imported by the Industrial consumers will be determined by the FBR and for the concerned Pharmaceutical Units, by the Ministry of Health: - Provided that acetone, hydrochloric acid and sulphuric acid appearing against Sr. Nos. 32, 35 and 38 shall also be importable by the Research Laboratories both in public or private sector & educational institutions subject to NOC from the Ministry of Narcotics Control; Provided further that commercial importer shall also be allowed to import acetone, anthranilic acid, ethyl ether, hydrochloric acid and sulphuric acid appearing against Serial Nos. 32, 33, 34, 35 and 38 below, subject to NOC and quota determination by the Ministry of Narcotic Control.
17.	2924.2300	N-Acetyl anthranilic acid	-do-
18.	2932.9100	Isosafrole	-do-
19.	2939.4100	Ephedrine	-do-
20.	2939.6100	Ergometrine	-do-
21.	2939.6200	Ergotamine	-do-
22.	2939.6300	Lysergic acid	-do-
23.	2930.9099	3-4-Methylenedionophenyl-2-propanone	-do-
24.	2939.4400	Norephedrine	-do-
25.	2914.3100	1-Phenyl-2-propanone	-do-
26.	2932.9300	Piperonal	-do-
27.	2939.4200	Pseudoephedrine	-do-
28.	2932.9400	Safrole	-do-
29.	2914.1100	Acetone	-do-
30.	2922.4300	Anthranilic acid	-do-
31.	2909.1100	Ethyl ether	-do-
32.	2806.1000	Hydrochloric acid	-do-
33.	2916.3400	Phenylacetic acid	-do-
34.	2933.3200	Piperidine	-do-

35.	2807.0000	Sulphuric acid	-do-
36.	2841.6100	Potassium permanganate	Importable by industrial consumer, pharmaceutical units and commercial importers subject to NOC by the Ministry of Narcotics Control.
37.	2902.3000	Toluene	-do-
38.	2914.1200	Methyl ethyl ketone	-do-
39.	2912.1100	Formaldehyde	Import shall be allowed only to industrial consumers who have valid license issued by the environmental agency/department concerned under the Pakistan Environmental Protection Act, 1997.
40.	Respective headings.	All narcotic drugs and psychotropic substances, except items on Banned List.	Importable by only those pharmaceutical units having valid drugs manufacturing license on the authorizations of Ministry of National Health Regulations Services Coordination. Such imports shall however be subject to meeting the conditions prescribed for imports of pharmaceutical raw materials vide S.No.7 of Part-II of Appendix-B.
41.	3002.1000,3002.9010	Human blood and its fractions.	Consignment shall be released on production of AIDs and hepatitis B & C free certificate.
42.	3002.1000,3002.9010	Contaminated blood samples for laboratory test	Importable on the recommendation of Ministry of National Health Services, Regulations and Coordination subject to following conditions: -- i) The importing laboratory is duly approved by Ministry of Health prior to import of contaminated blood samples; ii) The laboratories have qualified staff and state of the art equipment to ensure: - a) Bio safety of lab environment. b) Safety of waste disposal; and iii) The importing laboratory complies with the procedure prescribed by Ministry of Health, for import, handling and waste disposal of contaminated blood samples.
43.	3204.1200, 3204.9000	Food colours	Food colours as specified vide Annex B-2 shall be allowed subject to production of certificate from the Government of the exporting country that it is in use or registered in that country, and carrying fair and true labeling.
44.	3205.0000	Food colour lakes, prepared from colours of heading No. 3204.9000.	-do-
45.	3204.1100,3204.1200,3204.1300 3204.1400,3204.1510,3204.1590 3204.1600,3204.1700,3204.1910 3204.1990,3204.2000,3204.9000 3212.1000,3212.9010,3212.9020 3212.9030,3212.9090	Dyes	Importable subject to certificate from the supplier that the dyes are neither based on benzidine, nor contain any contents thereof.

46.	3601.0000,3602.0000,3603.0000	Explosives	Department of Explosives of Ministry of Industries shall allow import of explosives only on the production of NOC by the importers from the Defense Production Division.
47.	3604.1000	Fireworks	Import shall be allowed subject to compulsory physical examination by the explosives experts and that Department of Explosives, Ministry of Industries shall allow import only to the applicants and companies having valid licenses under the Explosive Rules, 2010.
48.	3808.5010,3808.5090,3808.9110 3808.9120,3808.9130,3808.9140 3808.9150,3808.9170,3808.9180 3808.9191,3808.9199,3808.9210 3808.9220,3808.9290,3808.9310 3808.9390,3808.9400,3808.9910 3808.9990	Insecticides, rodenticides, fungicides, herbicides, anti-sprouting products, disinfectants and similar products, excluding plant growth regulators, put up in forms or packing for retail sale or as preparation, or articles (for example Sulphur, treated bands, wicks and candles and fly-papers).	Importable, in accordance with the provisions of the Agricultural Pesticides Ordinance, 1971 (II of 1971), as amended from time to time, and the rules made there under, and those drugs which are registered under the Drugs Act, 1976 (XXXI of 1976), and the rules made there under. Import of such pesticides shall however be subject to prior pre-shipment inspection certification to be issued by the pre-shipment inspection companies notified by the Department of Plant Protection given vide Appendix-O.
49.	3915.1000,3915.2000,3915.3000 3915.9000	Waste, parings and scrap of Plastics, excluding hospital waste of all kind, used sewerage pipes and used chemical containers falling under their respective PCT codes (Sr. No. 25 of Appendix-A refers)	Importable by industrial consumers subject to the fulfillment of following conditions: - (i) Environmental approval of Plastic Scrap recycling facility by the respective Federal or Provincial Environmental Protection Agencies (EPAs) indicating the annual recycling capacity. Respective EPAs shall give final decision within 30 days of submission of the application. (ii) Annual Environmental Audit Report duly approved by the respective EPAs. This condition shall however not apply in case of units importing plastic scrap for the first time. (iii) Pre-shipment Inspection in exporting country by any of the companies mentioned in this order vide Appendix-H. The companies shall certify that the consignment being exported to Pakistan does not contain any hazardous substance as defined in the Basel Convention. Customs authorities, in case of doubt, may randomly get any consignment tested through PCSIR or any other government certified laboratory. (iv) The imported consignment of the registered recycling plant shall be cleared from one custom station only.

50.	Respective headings	Granules made by the recycling of plastics waste.	Importable subject to certification from the exporting country that the granules being exported are free from hazardous substance as defined in Basel Convention. Customs Authorities shall ensure strict compliance of the condition.
51.	7311.0030	Used or refurbished cryogenic containers.	Import shall be allowed only by the industrial consumers or users subject to the following conditions: Refurbished prior to shipment. Inspected by notified independent certifying body that such containers or cylinders are compliant with international safety standards. (ii) Such containers or cylinders shall not be older than 10 years.
52.	7311.0000	Used or refurbished cylinders (for liquefied gas) for use in motor vehicles only.	Production of safety certificate from the Department of Explosives.
53	Respective headings	Passport printers, visa printers, laminators and laminate rolls.	Import of the following types of passport printers, visa printers, laminators and laminate rolls shall be allowed only by Directorate General Immigration and Passports: (i) Dilettta 330i, 400i & 500i (Passport Printers). (ii) Dilettta RL 90, CPL90, PL 90 (Passport Visa Printers). (iii) Dilettta (Laminators). Advantage Make (Laminate Rolls).
54.	8402.1110, 8402.1120, 8402.1130 8402.1190, 8402.1200, 8402.1910 8402.1920, 8402.1930, 8402.1990 8402.2000	Steam and vapour generating boilers (other than central heating hot water boilers capable also of producing low pressure steam) and super-heated water boilers.	Importable subject to prior approval of the Chief Inspector of Boilers: Provided that used boilers will also be allowed to be imported subject to the following conditions: (i) Certification by any of the prescribed PSI companies as listed at Appendix-H for safety and remaining life of at least ten years, and Production of certificate from Chief Inspector of boilers.
55	Respective headings	Machinery for arms and ammunition, high explosives, Radioactive substances, security printing, currency and mint.	Import shall be allowed to only such industrial units as have been duly sanctioned by the relevant Government agency.
56	8517.1210, 8517.1230 and Respective Headings	Mobile handsets and tablets	Import shall be subject to the type approved by Pakistan Telecommunication Authority (PTA) and production of Certificate of Clearance (CoC) issued by PTA after ensuring that the handset has a valid GSMAIMEI etc. and white listed in the Device Identification Registration & Blocking System (DRIBS).

57	8525.5010, 8525.5020, 8525.5030, 8525.5040, 8525.5090, 8525.6010, 8525.6020, 8525.6030, 8525.6040, 8525.6050, 8525.6060, 8525.6070, 8525.6090, 8529.1010, 8529.1020, 8529.1090 and respective headings.	Transmission apparatus whether or not incorporating reception apparatus, (excluding fax machines and mobile phones) T.V. transmission antenna system, field pick-up units STL equipment, VHF set, TV modulator and demodulator, video projection systems and video switching system	Importable by PTV, concerned public sector agencies, and others licensed by the Federal Government. Companies having agreement with the concerned Government agencies for supply of cellular and mobile phone facility may also import this equipment.
58.	8548.1010, 8548.1090	Waste and scrap of exhausted batteries of automobiles	Import of such scrap shall be allowed only in favor of industrial consumers only for their own use subject to the condition that importer shall furnish to Customs Authorities: - (a) A certificate from the concerned Federal or Provincial Environment Protection Agency that they have adequate manufacturing facility capable of handling hazardous wastes in accordance with the provision of Basel Convention; and (b) Permission or authorization specifying quantitative entitlement for the import of waste and scrap of electric accumulators issued by the concerned Federal/Provincial Environment Protection Agency/Department.
59.	8710.0010, 8710.0090	Armored security vans, (New or second hand).	Importable by banks and security companies for their own use, subject to special number plates shall be obtained from the concerned provincial authorities.
60.	9018.3110, 9018.3120, 9018.3950	Non-sterilized surgical needles and syringes.	Importable only by the industrial units duly registered with the concerned Federal or Provincial public health agency, for further processing of these goods into value added, final and finished products.
61.	Respective headings	Active ingredients for formulation/manufacturing of pesticides.	Importable by industrial users only.
62.	9302.0091, 9302.0092, 9302.0093, 9302.0099, 9303.1000, 9303.2011, 9303.2012, 9303.2019, 9303.2020, 9303.2090, 9303.3010, 9303.3020, 9303.3090, 9303.9000, 9306.2100, 9306.2900, 9306.3010, 9306.3090, 9306.9000	Arms and Ammunition.	(a) Importable only by individual license holders or arms dealership license holders to whom license is granted by; (i) Provincial Home Department, in case of dealers located in that Province; or (ii) Ministry of Interior, in case of dealers located in Islamabad Capital Territory; A license holder under condition (a) shall also have certificate from Original Equipment Manufacturer (OEM) in case of imported from an OEM, otherwise a certificate from any of the prescribed (iii) PSI companies as listed in Appendix-H of IPO 2016.

			<p>specifically mentioning -</p> <p>(i) weapon's nomenclature;</p> <p>(ii) weapon's caliber or bore, or gauge; and</p> <p>(iii) weapon's manufacturer's logo, weapon's serial number embossed thereon and other related information; and</p> <p>(c) The weapon shall be importable only through air and sea ports.</p> <p>Note: The Commercial Import of Prohibited and Non-Prohibited Weapons and Ammunition (Regulation) Order, 2014 notified vide S.R.O. No.1112 (I)/2014 dated the 16th December, 2014 is hereby repealed.</p>
63	9305.2010, 9305.2020, 9305.2030, 9305.2040, 9305.2090, 9305.9111, 9305.9112, 9305.9113, 9305.9119, 9305.9190, 9305.9900	Barrel blanks for recoilless rifles, guns and mortars, and other parts and accessories of arms.	Importable by units authorized to manufacture arms.
64	Respective headings	Parts and accessories of arms and ammunition non-prohibited bores.	Importable, irrespective of import status, by duly sanctioned export-oriented units for manufacturing of arms and ammunition meant for 100% export. Customs Authorities will ensure that all requirements for manufacture-cum-export are met.
65	Respective headings	Sporting ammunition	<p>Import shall be allowed subject to the following conditions:</p> <p>(i) Registration or affiliation with the relevant authorities;</p> <p>(ii) Endorsement of their requirement by:</p> <p>(a) National Rifle Association of Pakistan (NRAP);</p> <p>(b) Administrator of the Gun Club Islamabad; and</p> <p>(c) Respective Armed Forces Headquarters in case of sportsmen of the Armed Forces; and</p> <p>(iii) Import will be affected directly and shall be subject to a maximum limit of the 35,000 cartridges or bullets per year.</p>
66	Respective Headings	All equipment used for reception, broadcast and distribution of Satellite signals pertaining to the field of electronic media such as Satellite Dishes, Decoders Receivers, Digital Satellite News Gathering (DSNG), Encoder, Modulator, High Power Amplifier (HPA), Integrated Digital Receiver (IRD), Broadband	Import shall be allowed into the country only after obtaining specific permission/NOC from the Pakistan Electronic Media Regulatory Authority (PEMRA)

		Global Access Network (B- GAN), LNA (Low Noise Amplifier), LNB (Low Noise Block), Camera with Satellite Transmission Facility, Digital Head end, etc."	
67.	Respective headings	Toys for infant	Importable subject to certification from the exporting countries that the toys imported, shall be in accordance with the international standards and are free from hazardous toxic elements.
68	Respective headings	Auto pilot kits	Import shall be allowed only in favor of authorized agencies/departments subject to NOC from Ministry of Defense.
69.	Respective headings	Air Vehicles with HD Camera & high speed WIFI Transmission capability and Night Vision Goggle	Import shall be allowed subject to prior NOC from the Ministry of Defense.
70	Respective headings	3D Printers	Import shall only be allowed with prior permission from the Ministry of Interior.
71.	Respective headings	Mercury and Mercury Compound	Import shall be allowed in for industrial consumers having valid environmental approval from the concerned Federal/Provincial Environmental Protection Agency /Department.
72.	Respective headings	Meat	Importable subject to sanitary requirements of Animal Quarantine Department of Ministry of National Food Security and Research.
73	Respective headings	Processed Food	Importable subject to the quality standards specified by the Pakistan Standards and Quality Control Authority.



Country Specific List of Prohibited and Restricted Articles-IB UPU

Country specific list of prohibited and restricted articles

Country	CN	PK	R	Al pistols; their parts and slugs	Importable by Pakistan Sports Boards, Provincial Sports Boards, National Rifle Association, Rifle Associations of armed forces and recognized or specialized sporting clubs, subject to the procedure to be notified by the Federal Government	930702	936890		1 January 2016
PAKISTAN	PK	P	P	Alcoholic beverages and spirits (excluding ethyl alcohol of industrial grade); including brewing and distilling drugs and waste; wine lees and argol.		720300	739999		1 January 2016
PAKISTAN	PK	R	R	All edible products	Import into Pakistan shall be subject to the conditions that (i) It must be fit for human consumption; (ii) They shall be free of any "haram" element or ingredients; (iii) Edible products shall have at least 50% (fifty per cent) of the shelf life, calculated from the date of filing of Import General Manifest (IGM); (iv) Where conditions at (iii) above are not printed on the packing; certificate issued by the Manufacturers or Principals in respect of these conditions shall be accepted by Customs Authorities; (v) That, in case of meat: it was obtained from "halal" animals and slaughtered in accordance with the Islamic injunctions; (vi) Import of edible oil in bulk quantity shall be on landed weight and quality basis.	http://www.mnfr.gov.pk		02/03/04/05/07/0 8/09/10/15/16/17; 18/19/20/21/22	1 January 2016
PAKISTAN	PK	R	R	All equipment used for reception; broadcast and distribution of Satellite signals pertaining to the field of electronic media such as Satellite Dishes; Decoders Receivers; Digital Satellite News Gathering (DSNG); Encoder; Modulator; High Power Amplifier (HPA); Integrated Digital Receiver (IDR); Broadband Global Access Network (B-GAN); LNA (Low Noise Amplifier); LNB (Low Noise Block); Camera with Satellite Transmission Facility; Digital Head end; etc.*	Import shall be allowed into the country only after obtaining specific permission/NOC from the Pakistan Electronic Media Regulatory Authority (PEMA)	http://www.pemra.gov.pk	852500	852900	1 January 2016
PAKISTAN	PK	R	R	All species of plants and parts thereof; whether living or dead; stems; branches; tubers; barks; corns; stock; bud-wood; layers; slips; suckers; green scum on stagnant pool; leaves fruits rhizomes etc.	Can be imported into Pakistan subject to compliance of Phytosanitary requirements and drawing of samples and testing quality by Department of Plant Protection and Fertilizer Seed Certification Agency of Ministry of National Food Security and Research, Government of Pakistan	http://www.mnfr.gov.pk		0601, 0602, 0603, 0604	1 January 2016
PAKISTAN	PK	P	P	Anti-toxicity cyanate.					
PAKISTAN	PK	P	P	Ammunition and parts of ammunition; excluding ammunition for weapons of non-prohibited bore and cartridges for riveting or similar tools.			293090 9306		1 January 2016 1 January 2016
PAKISTAN	PK	P	P	Anti-Islamic obscene or subversive literature.					
PAKISTAN	PK	P	P	Any edible product not fit for human consumption.		490100	491100		28 January 2011
PAKISTAN	PK	P	P	Any goods containing ingredients or parts which may be repugnant to the Injunctions of Islam as laid down in the Holy Quran and Sunnah of the Holy Prophet (Peace be upon him); including gels; hogs; boars and swine; and their products and by-products.		010100	970600		1 January 2015 1 January 2016
PAKISTAN	PK	R	R	Arms and Ammunition not otherwise banned	Importable in accordance with the procedure laid down by the Federal Government		930100	930700	1 January 2016
PAKISTAN	PK	P	P	Arms of prohibited bore (including semi-automatic rifles of 7.62 mm and rifles of 8 mm to 9 mm bore) and arms of calibres lesser than 9.21 mm rifle			930100	930700	1 January 2016

Country specific list of prohibited and restricted articles

PAKISTAN	PK	R	Arsenic and Arsenic compound	Importable by industrial consumers who have valid licenses issued by the concerned Environment Protection Agency/ Department under PEPA 1997.	http://www.environment.gov.pk	230430	1 January 2016
PAKISTAN	PK	R	Asbestos	Import of asbestos of chrysotile type is allowed subject to:- Specification: Colour-white to Grey; and Density 2.4 g/cm ³ to 2.6 g/cm ³ (Conditions:- Certificate from the exporter confirming that type of asbestos being exported is chrysotile asbestos with the above specifications. The Importers of asbestos will clearly mention the type of the asbestos being imported in the Import documents.	http://www.commerce.gov.pk	2524	1 January 2016
PAKISTAN	PK	R	Auto plot kits	Import shall be allowed only in favour of authorized agencies/departments subject to NOC from Ministry of Defense	http://www.commerce.gov.pk		1 January 2016
PAKISTAN	PK	R	Barrel blanks for recoilless rifles; guns and mortars; and other parts and accessories of arms.	Importable by units authorized to manufacture arms		9305	1 January 2016
PAKISTAN	PK	R	Bucel nuts (Areca)	Can be imported into Pakistan producing Phytosanitary certificate issued by the competent authorities of the country of origin confirming that the exported goods are free from infestation; and are fit for human consumption.	http://www.mnfr.gov.pk	80370	1 January 2016
PAKISTAN	PK	P	Caffeine citrate			299930	1 January 2016
PAKISTAN	PK	P	Cannabis resins and barks.			130190	1 January 2016
PAKISTAN	PK	R	Cigarette making paper.	Importable only by the Cigarette manufacturers registered with the Federal Board of Revenue and Government of A.J.K.	http://www.commerce.gov.pk	4813	1 January 2016
PAKISTAN	PK	R	Cigars; cheroots; cigars and cigarettes of tobacco or of tobacco substitutes	Packets should carry the warning "Smoking is injurious to health"		2402	1 January 2016
PAKISTAN	PK	P	Cinematograph film wholly or partly exposed or developed in any Pakistani or Indian language; with or without a sound track and depicting Pakistani or Indian way of living either silent or dubbed; or in which leading roles have been played by Pakistani or Indian actors or actresses.			3706	1 January 2016
PAKISTAN	PK	P	Clothing (of asbestos).			6812	1 January 2016
PAKISTAN	PK	P	Cocoa leaves; poppy straw and cannabis herbs.			121130; 121140; 121190	1 January 2016
PAKISTAN	PK	P	Concentrate of poppy straw: extracts and tinctures of cannabis.			1302; 2939	1 January 2016
PAKISTAN	PK	R	Cotton Seed	Import in to Pakistan is subject to prior approval of the Ministry of National Food Security & Research; Government of Pakistan	http://www.mnfr.gov.pk	120721; 120729	1 January 2016
PAKISTAN	PK	R	Crude palm oil	Importable by manufacture having valid license and registration from Pakistan Standard Quality Control Authority. Commercial importers importing bulk crude palm oil for storage are subject to safeguard mechanism notified by the Federal Board of Revenue.	http://www.psqca.com.pk	151110	1 January 2016

Country specific list of prohibited and restricted articles

PAKISTAN	PK	R	Drugs and medicines (allopathic)	(i) Import shall be permissible strictly according to registration of drugs under section 7 of the Drugs Act, 1975 (XXX of 1975); subject to the condition that the drugs shall have at least 75% of the shelf life calculated from the date of filing of "Import General Manifest" (IGM); as per provision of Customs Act, 1969 (I of 1969); excepting those drugs specifically allowed by the Director General, Ministry of Health; Government of Pakistan. (ii) All imported packaged medicines or drugs shall display the name and prescription material of imported medicines/drugs in accordance with the Drugs (labelling and packaging) Rules, 1985 of Ministry of Health.	http://www.dra.gov.pk	300300	300400	1 January 2016
PAKISTAN	PK	R	Dyes	Importable subject to certificate from the suppliers that the dyes are neither based on benzidine, nor contain any contents thereof.	http://www.commerce.gov.pk		3206; 3204; 3203; 3212	1 January 2016
PAKISTAN	PK	P	Dyes containing benzidine				3206; 3204; 3203; 3212 360410	1 January 2016
PAKISTAN	PK	P	Fireworks					1 January 2016
PAKISTAN	PK	R	Fish and fishery products	Entry into Pakistan is subject to quarantine requirement of Marine and Fishery Department of Ministry of National Food Security and Research; Government of Pakistan	http://www.mnfr.gov.pk	030100	030800	1 January 2016
PAKISTAN	PK	R	Food colors	Food colours shall be allowed subject to production of certificate from the Government of the exporting country that it is in use or registered in that country; and carrying fair and true labelling	http://www.mnfr.gov.pk		210690	1 January 2016
PAKISTAN	PK	R	Fresh and dry fruits	Entry is allowed subject to production of aflatoxin report to the effect that the consignment is free from any pests/disease; to be certified by Department of Plant Protection; Ministry of National Food Security & Research; Government of Pakistan	http://www.mnfr.gov.pk	070100	081400	1 January 2016
PAKISTAN	PK	P	Furskins and manufactures thereof; other than raw furskins and tanned or dressed furskins of sheep, lambs, rabbits, goats, kids thereof; calf and other animal fur not internationally prohibited.			430200	430400	1 January 2016
PAKISTAN	PK	P	Gambling equipment				9504	1 January 2016

Country specific list of prohibited and restricted articles

PAKISTAN	PK	P	Goods (including their containers) bearing any obscene pictures, writings, inscriptions or visible representations.		9501; 7375; 4305; 4306; 6902; 6907; 6903; 8102; 8105; 8106; 8103; 4421; 8449; 8444; 4016; 7326; 4017; 9706; 7805; 6914; 8112; 8110; 7321; 7322; 9602; 7020; 6807; 6806; 6809; 6808; 8505; 8109; 4303; 4304; 8106; 6802; 4503; 7419; 4504; 4823; 6802; 7616; 8007; 7116; 7115; 7907; 6810; 6812; 6811; 6814; 4911; 6813; 7508	1 January 2016
PAKISTAN	PK	P	Goods (including their containers) bearing any words or inscription of a religious character; the use or disposal of which may injure the religious feelings of any sect; class or group of people in Pakistan.			1 January 2016
PAKISTAN	PK	P	Hazardous wastes as defined and classified in the Basel Convention.			1 January 2016
PAKISTAN	PK	P	Hospital waste of all kind; used sewerage pipes and used chemical containers.		3825	1 January 2016
PAKISTAN	PK	P	Insulin preparations and syringes in 40 IU strength.		293712; 300331; 300431	1 January 2016
PAKISTAN	PK	R	Live Animals	Items subject to quarantine requirement of Animal Quarantine Department of Ministry of National Food Security & Research Government of Pakistan. Entry into Pakistan of wild life species shall be allowed only after obtaining NOC from National Council for Conservation of Wild Life (NCCW)	http://www.mnfr.gov.pk	1 January 2016
PAKISTAN	PK	R	Live Animals	Items subject to quarantine requirement of Animal Quarantine Department of Ministry of National Food Security & Research Government of Pakistan. Entry into Pakistan of wild life species shall be allowed only after obtaining NOC from National Council for Conservation of Wild Life (NCCW)	http://www.mnfr.gov.pk	1 January 2016
PAKISTAN	PK	R	Maps and hydrographic or similar charts of all kinds including atlases; wall maps; topographical plans and globes; printed.	Importable subject to the condition that these define the territories of Pakistan; the status of Jammu and Kashmir and the status of the states of Junagadh, Manavadar and Mangrol, in accordance with the maps published by the Department of Survey of Pakistan.	http://www.surveyofpakistan.gov.pk	4905 1 January 2016

Page 114 of 349

6 September 2021

Country specific list of prohibited and restricted articles

PAKISTAN	PK	R	Misprinted plastic/paper scrap having brand of edible products.	Importable only in completely "cut into pieces" form so that no piece contains the complete brand name.	http://www.commerce.gov.pk			1 January 2016
PAKISTAN	PK	P	Obscene or immoral articles is prohibited. This includes sex toys and related items.	Pakistan Post requests that designated operators issue the necessary instructions and guidance to postal staff; and inform their customers of this prohibition. If such items are received; they will be treated as wrongly admitted under Convention article 19 and; as per subsection 8.1 thereof, they will not be forwarded; delivered or returned to origin.	UPU Circular 2020.193			28 January 2021
PAKISTAN	PK	P	Opium.			130211		1 January 2016
PAKISTAN	PK	P	Other (benzidine and its derivatives).			292159		1 January 2016
PAKISTAN	PK	P	Other (fire arms and similar devices which operate by firing of an explosive charge); excluding ring blaster tools / boulder ballistic guns / riveting tools.			9303		1 January 2016
PAKISTAN	PK	P	Other (pyrotechnic articles).					
PAKISTAN	PK	P	Other arms (for example; spring guns; air pistols and truncheons).			3604		1 January 2016
PAKISTAN	PK	P	Paraphenylene-toluene carbamide and 5-Nitro-2-proxyl-aniline in both tablet and powder or crystalline forms.			9304		1 January 2016
PAKISTAN	PK	R	Parts and accessories of arms and ammunition non-prohibited bore.	Importable; irrespective of import status; by duly sanctioned export oriented units for manufacturing of arms and ammunition meant for 100% export. Customs Authorities will ensure that all requirements for manufacture-cum-export are met.		292141		1 January 2016
PAKISTAN	PK	R	Pharmaceutical (allopathic) raw material of pharmaceutical grade in the form of unprocessed ingredients.	Import shall be allowed to pharmaceutical industries holding valid pharmaceutical manufacturing license in accordance with the provisions of Drugs (Imports and Exports) Rules, 1975 subject to the condition that pharmaceutical (allopathic) raw materials are of pharmaceutical grade and shall have at least 75% of the shelf life calculated from the date of filling of "Import General Manifest" (IGM); as per provisions of Customs Act, 1969 (IV of 1969); excepting those pharmaceutical raw materials specifically allowed by the Director General, Ministry of Health. If indication of shelf life is not given on the packing; the customs authorities may allow clearance on the basis of Form 7 (Batch Certificate issued by the manufacturer showing the manufacture/expiry dates).	http://www.dta.gov.pk			1 January 2016
PAKISTAN	PK	P	Please check on the destination customs website; for any other restrictions and prohibitions.		https://www.far.gov.pk/customs-basics/51149/131156	000000	998999	16 Mar 2020
PAKISTAN	PK	P	Pressure horns and parts thereof.			847989; 8530		1 January 2016
PAKISTAN	PK	R	Red Chillies (Whole)	Importable into Pakistan subject to production of all-otson report to the effect that the consignment is free from any pests/diseases; to be certified by the Department of Plants Protection; Ministry of National Food Security & Research; Government of Pakistan.	http://www.mnfr.gov.pk	70960		1 January 2016
PAKISTAN	PK	P	Retreaded tyres.					
PAKISTAN	PK	P	Revolvers and pistols of prohibited bore and of calibers higher than 0.46 inches bore.			930200	930400	1 January 2016

Country specific list of prohibited and restricted articles

Country	PK	R	Security Paper	Importable on the recommendation of Security Printing Corporation of Pakistan (SPC) Limited and only against specific orders: provided that Pakistan Security Paper certifies that it is not able to meet the requirement from its stock and gives NOC for imports.	http://www.security-papers.com	4810; 4811; 4812; 4823	1 January 2016
PAKISTAN	PK	P	Stolen goods	Importable into Pakistan subject to quality testing by Federal Seed Certification Agency and Department of Plant Protection and Fertilizer Seed Certification Agency of Ministry of National Food Security and Research; Government of Pakistan. Entry into Pakistan of rice seeds is subject to strict quarantine measures. Opium poppy seeds are allowed to be imported into Pakistan from those countries only where it legally produced.	http://www.mftr.gov.pk	010100 970600	1 January 2016
PAKISTAN	PK	R	Sugarcane seeds; banana and suchers; vegetable seed potatoes; oil seeds; flower seeds and other field crop seeds including Tubers; Rhizomes; Roots; Cuttings; etc.	Importable into Pakistan subject to quality testing by Federal Seed Certification Agency and Department of Plant Protection and Fertilizer Seed Certification Agency of Ministry of National Food Security and Research; Government of Pakistan. Entry into Pakistan of rice seeds is subject to strict quarantine measures. Opium poppy seeds are allowed to be imported into Pakistan from those countries only where it legally produced.	http://www.mftr.gov.pk	000110; 000120; 070110; 100111; 100410; 100510; 100710; 100821; 100830; 120110; 120230; 120300; 120400; 120510; 120590; 120600; 120710; 120721; 120730; 120740; 120750; 120760; 120770; 120791; 120910; 120921; 120922; 120923; 120924; 120925; 120929; 120930; 120991; 120999; 121120; 121130; 121140; 121190	1 January 2016
PAKISTAN	PK	R	Toys for infant	Importable subject to certification from the exporting countries that the toys imported shall be in accordance with the international standards and are free from hazardous toxic elements.	http://www.commerce.gov.pk	950300	1 January 2016
PAKISTAN	PK	P	Translation of the Holy Quran without Arabic text				1 January 2016
PAKISTAN	PK	P	Used lubricating; hydraulic; transformer oils and similar oils or waste oils			271201; 271209	1 January 2016
PAKISTAN	PK	P	Used pneumatic tyres			401220	1 January 2016
PAKISTAN	PK	P	Used vegetable ghee and cooking oil			151800	1 January 2016
PAKISTAN	PK	P	Vetches (whole grain; split or any other form)			120529; 120909; 121490	1 January 2016
PAKISTAN	PK	R	Waste and scrap (excluding waste and scrap of second hand or used tyres) in the form of plates; sheets; rubber coated canvas and rubber belting.	Importable incompletely "cut into pieces" condition.	http://www.commerce.gov.pk	401700	1 January 2016

Country specific list of prohibited and restricted articles

PAKISTAN	PK	R	Waste and scrap of exhausted batteries or automobiles	Import of such scrap shall be allowed only in favour of industrial consumers only for their own use subject to the condition that importer shall furnish to Customs Authorities (a) a certificate from the concerned Federal or Provincial Environment Protection Agency that they have adequate manufacturing facility capable of handling hazardous wastes in accordance with the provision of Basel Convention; and (b) permission or authorization specifying quantitative entitlement for the import of waste and scrap of electric accumulators issued by the or concerned Federal/Provincial Environment Protection Agency.	http://www.environment.gov.pk	8548			1 January 2016
PAKISTAN	PK	P	Weapons		http://www.mof.gov.pk	930100	930700		1 January 2016
PAKISTAN	PK	R	Wheat	Importation is subject to the specifications notified by the Ministry of National Food Security & Research, Government of Pakistan from time to time and subject to pre-shipment inspection by approved PSI agent.	http://www.mof.gov.pk			1001	1 January 2016
PALESTINIAN TERRITORY	PS	P	Batteries - new and use lithium ion and lithium polymer			850650	854310		
PALESTINIAN TERRITORY	PS	P	Please check on the destination customs website for any other restrictions and prohibitions		http://www.pmol.ps/pmol/en/index.php	000000	999999		19 May 2016
PANAMA	PA	N	Please check on the destination customs website for any other restrictions and prohibitions		http://www.ana.gob.pa/	000000	999999		1 January 2016
PARAGUAY	PY	N	Please check on the destination customs website for any other restrictions and prohibitions		http://www.aduana.gov.py/	000000	999999		1 January 2016
PERU	PE	P	All kinds of spray						1 January 2016
PERU	PE	R	Animals; multiplication material; products and by-products of animal origin and insects of beneficial value (bees)			010100	010600	0501; 0502; 0504; 0506; 0507; 0508; 0510; 0511	1 January 2016
PERU	PE	R	Artworks; replicas or books older than 100 years; Assuming that all pre-Hispanic/movable cultural property; viceregal and some of the republican period are cultural heritage of the nation (non-exportable goods)			970100	970600		1 January 2016
PERU	PE	R	Biological products			051110	051199	300210; 300290	1 January 2016
PERU	PE	R	Books, journals, maps; notebooks; kikettes; CDs; videocassettes; plans or any other material in which the limits of Peru are represented or referenced			490100	491100	8525	1 January 2016
PERU	PE	R	Chemical pesticides for agricultural use; including technical grade active ingredients and commercial formulations					3808	1 January 2016
PERU	PE	R	Chemical products and supplies that, directly or indirectly, could be used to make basic cocaine paste; crude morphine base; morphine base and heroin.					180190; 180210; 293911; 293991; 590210	1 January 2016
PERU	PE	P	Colonies; perfumes					330300	1 January 2016